
 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
April 15, 2021 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Regular Session begins at 9:00 a.m.  
Estimated Ending Time 11:30 a.m. 

 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09 

Or Telephone: +1 669 900 9128 

Webinar ID: 922 4885 5470 

Passcode: 157476 

 

Meeting Agenda and Documents 

https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09


ZERO WASTE SONOMA 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

April 15, 2021 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
Regular Session begins at 9:00 a.m. 

 
Table of Contents 

 Description       Page 

Agenda   1  
Agenda Notes   2 
Item 4.1: Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Meeting  4 
Item 4.2: Minutes of the March 30, 2021 Meeting  7 
Item 4.3: March, April, and May 2021 Outreach Calendar 10 
Item 4.4: Approval of First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling,  13 
  Transportation, and Recycling Services 
Item 5: Gold Resolution Recognizing Karina Chilcott 33 
Item 6: Discussion and Possible Action on the Fiscal Year 21-22 Final Budget 34 
 
      
 
 
 

 
Note: This packet is 45 pages total 



 Zero Waste Sonoma 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

April 15, 2021 
REGULAR MEETING 

Regular Session begins at 9:00 a.m. 
Estimated Ending Time 11:30 a.m. 

In accordance with Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 the Board of 
Directors meeting will be held virtually. 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING IN PERSON 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 
https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWb 

ndjdz09 

Or Telephone: +1 669 900 9128 
Webinar ID: 922 4885 5470 

Passcode: 157476 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Public Comment may be submitted via recorded voice message or email.  Public comment 
may also be made by “raising your hand” using the Zoom platform.   

Voice recorded public comment: To submit public comment via recorded message, please 
call 707-565-2722 by 5:00 pm Wednesday, April 14th. State your name and the item 
number(s) on which you wish to speak. The recordings will be limited to two minutes. 
These comments may be played or read at the appropriate time during the board meeting. 

Email public comment: To submit an emailed public comment to the Board please email 
leslie.lukacs@sonoma-county.org and provide your name, the number(s) on which you 
wish to speak, and your comment. These comments will be emailed to all Board members 
and can be provided anytime leading up to and throughout the meeting. 

2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100    Santa Rosa, California  95403    Phone: 707/565-3579    www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

1

https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09
https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09
mailto:leslie.lukacs@sonoma-county.org


2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100    Santa Rosa, California  95403    Phone: 707/565-3579    www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Agenda 
Item 

1. Call to Order Regular Meeting

2. Agenda Approval

3. Public Comments (items not on the agenda)

Consent (w/attachments) 
4.1  Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Regular Meeting 
4.2  Minutes of the March 30, 2021 Special Meeting 
4.3    March, April, May 2021 Outreach Calendar 
4.4    Approval of First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling,    

 Transportation, and Recycling Services 

Regular Calendar 

5. Gold Resolution Recognizing Karina Chilcott [Lukacs]

6. Discussion and Possible Action on FY 21/22 Final Budget [Collard]

7. Boardmember Comments – NO ACTION

8. Executive Director Report – VERBAL REPORT

9. Staff Comments – NO ACTION

10. Next ZWS meeting:  May 20, 2021

11. Adjourn

Consent Calendar:  These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are usually approved by a single 
majority vote.  Any Boardmember may remove an item from the consent calendar. 

Regular Calendar:  These items include significant and administrative actions of special interest and are classified by 
program area.  The regular calendar also includes "Set Matters," which are noticed hearings, work sessions and public 
hearings. 

Public Comments: Pursuant to Rule 6, Rules of Governance of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency/Zero Waste 
Sonoma, members of the public desiring to speak on items that are within the jurisdiction of the Agency shall have an 
opportunity at the beginning and during each regular meeting of the Agency.  When recognized by the Chair, each person 
should give his/her name and address and limit comments to 3 minutes.  Public comments will follow the staff report and 
subsequent Boardmember questions on that Agenda item and before Boardmembers propose a motion to vote on any 
item. 

Disabled Accommodation:  If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternative format or 
requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact the Zero Waste Sonoma 
Office at 2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100, Santa Rosa, (707) 565-3579, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, to 
ensure arrangements for accommodation by the Agency. 

Noticing:  This notice is posted 72 hours prior to the meeting on the internet at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

2

http://www.zerowastesonoma.gov/


2300 County Center Drive, Room B100       Santa Rosa, California  95403       Phone:  707/565-3579      www.zerowastesonoma.gov 
    

To: Zero Waste Sonoma Board Members 

From: Leslie Lukacs, Executive Director 

Subject: April 15, 2021 Board Meeting Agenda Notes 

Consent Calendar: 
These items include routine financial, informational and administrative items and staff recommends that 
they be approved en masse by a single vote.  Any Board member may remove an item from the consent 
calendar for further discussion or a separate vote by bringing it to the attention of the Chair.   

4.1   Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Meeting 
4.2   Minutes of the March 30, 2021 
4.3   March, April, and May 2021 Outreach Calendar 
4.4   Approval of First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling 

Services 

Regular Calendar

5   Gold Resolution Recognizing Karina Chilcott:   
After over twenty years of service to Zero Waste Sonoma, Karina Chilcott officially retired on April 
5, 2021.  Staff would like to acknowledge her contributions to the agency and her lifelong 
commitment to the goals of Zero Waste Sonoma.  

Recommended Action: Staff recommends the Board approve the Gold Resolution. 

6 Discussion and Possible Action on the Fiscal Year 21-22 Final Budget:  
  The Board gave staff direction regarding the Work Plan at the February 18, 2021 ZWS meeting. The 
Work Plan is the first step in the budget development process. The next step in preparing the ZWS’s 
annual budget is the Board’s review and approval of a Draft Budget which was done at the March 
18, 2021 meeting.  Approval of the Final Budget is the last step in the annual budget process. 

Recommended Action: Staff recommends the Board approval of the revised Final FY 21-22 Budget 
(Option A) with the assumption that a budget adjustment can be implemented mid-year if the 
agency cap is resolved. 

3



March 18, 2021 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

Agenda Item #: 4.1 
Agenda Date: 2 

Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Meeting 

Zero Waste Sonoma met on March 18, 2021, via Zoom to hold a virtual board meeting. 

Board Members Present: 
City of Cloverdale Marta Cruz City of Santa Rosa   John Sawyer 
City of Cotati  Susan Harvey City of Sebastopol Diana Rich 
City of Healdsburg Larry Zimmer City of Sonoma  Madolyn Agrimonti 
City of Petaluma Patrick Carter County of Sonoma Susan Gorin  
City of Rohnert Park Pam Stafford Town of Windsor Deb Fudge 

Staff Present: 
Executive Director: Leslie Lukacs 
Counsel: Ethan Walsh  
Staff: Xinci Tan, Sloane Pagal, Thora Collard, Courtney Scott 
Agency Clerk: Janel Perry 

1. Call to Order Regular Meeting
Regular session was called to order at 9:00 a.m.
Introductions

2. Agenda Approval

3. Public Comments (items not on the agenda)
None.

4. Consent (w/attachments)
4.1    Minutes of the February 18, 2021 Regular Meeting 
4.2    February, March, and April 2021 Outreach Calendar 
4.3    FY 20/21 Budget Adjustment 
4.4    Letters of Support: AB818 Solid Waste: Pre-moistened Non-woven Disposable Wipes; AJR 

Basel Agreement Ratification; SB343 Truth in Recycling Labeling; SB244 Lithium-ion 
Batteries: Illegal Disposal and Fire Prevention 

Action Items: 
• None

Public Comments: 
• None

Motion: For approval of all items of the consent calendar. 

4



March 18, 2021 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

First: City of Cotati - Susan Harvey 
Second: City of Healdsburg - Larry Zimmer 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  AYE 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -10- NOES -0- ABSENT -0- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed. 

Regular Calendar 
5. Discussion and Possible Action on FY 21/22 Draft Budget [Collard]

Board Comments/Action Items:
• Initiate discussion with the County regarding the self-haul tip fee cap
• Continually check at the state level if AB1383 has an amended timeline for

implementation/enforcement

Public Comments: 
• Logan Harvey commented on rate clarifications.
• Guy Tillotson commented in support of agency’s action.

Motion: To approve Fiscal Year 21-22 draft budget with directions to look at the cap but not as it 
relates to this specific budget and return our budget on April 15th.  
First: City of Cotati - Susan Harvey 
Second: City of Santa Rosa - John Sawyer 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  AYE 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -10- NOES -0- ABSENT -0- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed.  

6. Discussion and Possible Action on Model Environmentally Preferred Purchasing Policy
[Pagal/Tan]

Board Comments/Action Items:
• No known litigation with preferred purchasing policies in other counties at this time
• Create a system with specific guidelines for jurisdictions to track their purchases
• Share a report with board members based off of the tracking information data
• Ensure that local buying options are preferred choice

5



March 18, 2021 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

Public Comments: 
None. 

Motion: To approve the Model Environmentally Preferred Purchasing Policy including editing of 
font sizes on pages 46, 47 and 52 and direction to fill in blanks as appropriate with agency policy 
and references for those blanks.   
First: City of Petaluma – Patrick Carter 
Second: City of Healdsburg- Larry Zimmer 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  AYE 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -10- NOES -0- ABSENT -0- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed.  

7. Boardmember Comments – NO ACTION
Comments were received by the board.

8. Executive Director Report – NO ACTION
Executive Director present report.
John Sawyer left at 10:15 am.

9. Staff Comments – NO ACTION
None.

10. Next SCWMA meeting: April 15, 2021

11. Adjourn: 10:22 am

Submitted by: Janel Perry 

6



March 30, 2021 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

Agenda Item #: 4.2 
Agenda Date: 2 

Minutes of the March 30, 2021 Meeting 

Zero Waste Sonoma met on March 30, 2021, via Zoom to hold a virtual board meeting. 

Board Members Present: 
City of Cloverdale Marta Cruz City of Santa Rosa   John Sawyer 
City of Cotati  ABSENT City of Sebastopol Diana Rich 
City of Healdsburg Larry Zimmer City of Sonoma  Madolyn Agrimonti 
City of Petaluma Patrick Carter County of Sonoma Susan Gorin  
City of Rohnert Park Pam Stafford Town of Windsor Absent 

Staff Present: 
Executive Director: Leslie Lukacs 
Counsel: Ethan Walsh  
Staff: Xinci Tan, Sloane Pagal, Thora Collard, Courtney Scott 
Agency Clerk: Janel Perry 

1. Call to Order Regular Meeting
Regular session was called to order at 3:02 p.m.
Introductions
Susan Harvey arrived at 3:07 p.m.

2. Agenda Approval

3. Public Comments (items not on the agenda)

None.

Regular Calendar

4. Discussion and Possible Action on Rate Increase to the Agency Surcharge and Organics

Tipping Fee [Collard]

Board Comments/Action Items:
• Look at extending hours of the Central Landfill to increase revenue.
• Review data to see if we are receiving less revenue due to less tonnage being deposited

from hours being cut?
• Research what fees are and are not capped, see why the agency fees did not get a CPI

increase.
• Provide rate range for rate payers increase.
• Update the Board with updates on meetings with the County regarding the cap.
• Provide answers regarding enforcement of 1383 as they arise.
• Educate ratepayers of impending rate increases and why they exist.

7



March 30, 2021 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

Call to Order Public Hearing 
Public hearing was called to order at 3:45 p.m. 

Public Comments: 
None. 

Adjournment of Public Hearing 
Public hearing adjourned at 3:46 p.m. 

Motion:  To approve fee increases as proposed by staff in the staff report. 
First: City of Petaluma – Patrick Carter   
Second: County of Sonoma – Susan Gorin 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  AYE 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor ABSENT 

AYES -9- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed.  

Motion: To send a letter to the County of Sonoma advising them that we are being challenged 
with the limitation of the cap on these fees to finance all of the responsibilities that we are 
assuming and would love to support their efforts to negotiate an amendment to the MOA with 
Republic to increase that cap.  Secondly in the letter, we would like to inform the county that in 
the event we have negotiations in the future that this board and this agency would like to be 
consulted or part of the collaboration on that. 

First: County of Sonoma – Susan Gorin   
Second: City of Santa Rosa– John Sawyer 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  AYE 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor ABSENT 

AYES -9- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed.  

5. Boardmember Comments – NO ACTION
None.

6. Executive Director Report – NO ACTION
None.

8



March 30, 2021 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

7. Staff Comments – NO ACTION
None.

8. Next SCWMA meeting: April 15, 2021

9. Adjourn: 4:02 p.m.

Submitted by: Janel Perry 

9



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

 Agenda Item #:  4.3 
  Agenda Date:  4/15/2021 

ITEM:  March, April, May 2021 Outreach Calendar 

March 2021 OUTREACH  

Start date End date Start time End time Event City 

3/1/21 3/1/21 11:30 AM 12:30 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Luz Huerta Class Countywide 

3/1/21 3/1/21 12:30 PM 1:30 PM 
Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Luz Huerta Second 

Class 
Countywide 

3/2/21 3/2/21 10:30 AM 11:30 AM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Luz Huerta third Class Countywide 

3/2/21 3/2/21 11:30 AM 12:30 PM 
Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Luz Huerta fourth 

Class 
Countywide 

3/2/21 3/2/21 12:30 PM 1:30 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Renee Noriega Class Countywide 

3/2/21 3/2/21 11:30 AM 12:30 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ivonne Borjon Class Countywide 

3/2/21 3/2/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Kenwood) Unincorporated area 

3/3/21 3/3/21 11:00 AM 12:00 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Renee Noriega Class Countywide 

3/3/21 3/3/21 1:30 PM 2:30 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Luz Huerta Class Countywide 

3/3/21 3/3/21 10:30 AM 11:30 AM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ivonne Borjon Class Countywide 

3/3/21 3/3/21 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ivonne Borjon Class Countywide 

3/4/21 3/4/21 11:00 AM 12:00 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Renee Noriega Class Countywide 

3/4/21 3/4/21 1:30 PM 2:30 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ivonne Borjon Class Countywide 

3/4/21 3/4/21 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 
Participated in the Climate for Change Group 

meeting. Promoted the used motor oil and filter 
recycling program. 

Countywide 

3/5/21 3/5/21 11:30 AM 12:30 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ivonne Borjon Class Countywide 

3/5/21 3/5/21 11:00 AM 12:00 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Renee Noriega Class Countywide 

10



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

March continued 
Start date End date Start time End time Event City 

3/5/21 3/5/21 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Renee Noriega Class Countywide 

3/7/21 3/7/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Cloverdale) Cloverdale 

3/8/21 3/8/21 7:30 PM 9:30 PM 
Participated in the Rohnert Park Leadership 

Group meeting and had the chance to promote 
the used motor oil and general recycling. 

Countywide 

3/9/21 3/9/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Monte Rio) Unincorporated area 

3/10/21 3/3/21 10:30 AM 11:30 AM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ivonne Borjon Class Countywide 

3/10/21 3/10/21 10:00 AM 11:00 AM Pasitos Program: Presentation to parents that 
participate in this program. Ruth Valencia Class Countywide 

3/11/21 3/11/21 12:00 PM 1:00 PM Presentation to Rancho Cotati Rotary Club 
Member Cotati-Rohnert Pak 

3/12/21 3/14/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Graton) Unincorporated area 

3/13/21 3/13/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Graton) Unincorporated area 

3/16/21 3/16/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event 
(Santa Rosa, W) Santa Rosa 

3/17/21 3/17/21 9:00 AM 10:00 AM Latino Service providers and Latino Leaders on 
Climate Change group virtual meeting Countywide 

3/23/21 3/23/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Windsor) Windsor 

3/25/21 3/25/21 10:00 AM 11:00 AM EDB (Economic Development Board) and Hispanic 
Chamber Countywide 

3/30/21 3/30/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Petaluma) Petaluma 

3/30/21 3/30/21 11:00 AM 1:00 PM Parent University in Sonoma Virtual meeting Sonoma 

3/31/21 3/31/21 3:30 PM 4:30 PM Participated in the ZeroWaste Task force meeting 
and included information Countywide 

April  2021 OUTREACH 
Start date End date Start time End time Event City 

4/6/21 4/6/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Sebastopol) Sebastopol 

4/6/21 4/6/21 4:00 PM 5:00 PM Presentation at Head Start: Doyle Park and Cook Santa Rosa 

4/6/21 4/6/21 5:00 PM 7:00 PM Presentation at the County’s Climate Reslilience 
Town Hall County 

4/7/21 4/7/21 4:00 PM 5:00 PM Presentation at Head Start: Cloverdale HS and 
Windsor HS Cloverdale 

4/8/21 4/8/21 4:00 PM 5:00 PM Presentation at Head Start: All Early Head Start 
Infant, Toddler and Prenatal Home  Santa Rosa 

4/9/21 4/11/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Sonoma) Sonoma 

4/10/21 4/10/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Sonoma) Sonoma 

11



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

April  continued 
Start date End date Start time End time Event City 

4/13/21 4/13/21 4:00 PM 5:00 PM HS Barbara Daniels Love, MLK and Lincoln Santa Rosa 

4/13/21 4/13/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event 
(Santa Rosa, E) Santa Rosa 

4/14/21 4/14/21 4:00 PM 5:00 PM HS Sonoma, Petaluma and Rohnert Park Rohnert Park 

4/15/21 4/15/21 4:00 PM 5:00 PM HS JX Wilson, RL Stevens and Ridgeway Santa Rosa 

4/20/21 4/20/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Sonoma) Sonoma 

4/20/21 4/20/21 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Presentation to parent group for AVANCE Unincorporated area 

4/21/21 4/21/21 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Presentation to parent group for AVANCE Unincorporated area 

4/22/21 4/22/21 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Presentation to parent group for AVANCE Unincorporated area 

4/23/21 4/23/21 3:00 PM 4:00 PM Presentation to parent group for AVANCE Unincorporated area 

4/23/21 4/25/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Monte Rio) Unincorporated area 

4/24/21 4/24/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Monte Rio) Unincorporated area 

4/25/21 4/25/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Treated Wood Waste Collection Event Santa Rosa 

4/27/21 4/27/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Cloverdale) Cloverdale 

May 2021 OUTREACH 
Start date End date Start time End time Event City 

5/4/21 5/4/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Guerneville) Unincorporated area 

5/11/21 5/11/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Larkfield) Unincorporated area 

5/14/21 5/16/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Healdsburg) Healdsburg 

5/15/21 5/15/21 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Healdsburg) Healdsburg 

5/18/21 5/18/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event 
(Rohnert Park) Rohnert Park 

5/25/21 5/25/21 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Oakmont) Santa Rosa 

12



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov

Agenda Item #: 4.4 
Cost Center: HHW 
Staff Contact:  Scott 
Agenda Date:  4/15/2021 
Approved By:  LL 

ITEM:  Approval of First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, 
Transportation, and Recycling Services 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION / ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the Zero Waste Sonoma (ZWS) Executive Director to
execute the First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling
Services with Onsite Electronics Recycling, LLC.

II. BACKGROUND

The management of e-waste generated in Sonoma County is a core function of ZWS. In March of
2018, ZWS staff issued a Board-approved RFP for E-Waste Transportation and Recycling Services
with the option of including handling services. Six proposals were received and the evaluation
committee selected ECS Refining as the highest ranking proposer and Onsite Electronics as the
second highest ranking proposer.

Shortly after scoring the proposals, ECS Refining informed ZWS that it had filed Chapter 11
Bankruptcy in an effort to restructure their debts to their investors. ECS Refining assured ZWS that
they were still able to uphold their proposal and after a month of careful consideration and
consulting with attorneys, ZWS chose ECS Refining to be awarded the contract. As a precaution,
staff suggested signing a backup contract with Onsite Electronics that would become effective
upon a written Notice to Proceed if ECS Refining was unable to uphold their agreement. The Board
approved both agreements on June 20, 2018.

Shortly after the agreements were approved, ECS Refining closed permanently and a Notice to
Proceed was provided to Onsite Electronics on July 10, 2018. Onsite Electronics has been
performing transportation and recycling services since then and started providing handling
services in February 2019 after the previous e-waste handling contract expired with Recology.

The Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services with Onsite
Electronics is set to expire on June 30, 2021 and the contract provides the option for up to two
annual extensions.

III. DISCUSSION

ZWS staff and Onsite Electronics wish to utilize the annual extension provided in the contract with
updates to the term of agreement, payments to ZWS, and costs to ZWS. The amendment would
expire on June 30, 2022.

13



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov

Payments to ZWS will increase from $0.19/lb for Covered Electronic Waste (CEW) to $0.26/lb for 
CEW as set by the State of California’s CEW collector payment system. Should the State adjust the 
collector rate, Onsite Electronics will recognize that new rate as indicated in Section 2, Payment of 
the agreement. The State implemented the new rate of $0.26/lb on July 1, 2020 and Onsite 
Electronics has been using this rate since then. 

Costs to ZWS would also increase due to market conditions and to actual costs realized through 
operating experience. Universal Waste Electronic Devices (UWED) is the term used for 
miscellaneous e-waste like keyboards and stereos. The cost for UWED would increase from 
$0.10/lb to $0.20/lb based on market conditions as UWED is often primarily made of plastic and is 
labor intensive to separate. Current market rates for UWED are approximately $0.25 - $0.30/lb, 
staff believes that $0.20/lb is a reasonable rate for UWED and is an accurate reflection of the 
current market.  

The cost for a trailer exchange will also increase in the amendment. The original cost was set at 
$550 for a trailer exchange from the Central Disposal Site and $525 from the Sonoma Transfer 
Station with additional labor rates. After operating experience, Onsite Electronics has refined the 
practice and learned that their costs are not being covered. Similarly, they would like to include 
labor in the truck exchange rate. Each truck costs $300/day and contains two staff members. With 
travel time and labor, the staff spends ten hours per day at a rate of $275 per staff member per 
day. Onsite Electronics is asking for a new rate of $850 per truck to cover costs. 

IV. FUNDING IMPACT

Using e-waste collection quantities from the year 2020, staff expects the contract amendment to
cost an additional $112,185. With both revenue and expenditures calculated, the revised contract
is expected to cost ZWS a total of $96,784 per year.

In 2020, Onsite Electronics completed a total of 168 truck exchanges at the rate of $525 each. The
new rate of $850 per truck exchange increases costs by $54,600.

A total of 575,844 pounds of UWED was collected in 2020 at the rate of $0.10 per pound. The new
rate of $0.20 per pound increases costs by $57,584.

Because Onsite Electronics has already been paying $0.26 per pound for CEW since July 1, 2020,
there is no revenue increase reflected for the new amendment term. The new rates have already
been reflected in the ZWS work plan and in the draft budgets presented to the Board in February
and March of 2021 so no adjustment is required to the FY 21-22 budget.

V. ATTACHMENTS

1. First Amendment to the Agreement
2. Original Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services
3. Resolution

14



First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services 

1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR E-WASTE HANDLING, 
TRANSPORTATION, AND RECYCLING SERVICES 

This First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and 
Recycling Services (“First Amendment”) is made as of the    day of April, 2021, by the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (“SCWMA”) and Onsite Electronics Recycling, 
LLC (“Contractor”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, SCWMA and Contractor entered into that certain Agreement for E-Waste 
Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services (the “Agreement”), dated June 20, 2018, 
pursuant to which Contractor agreed to handle, sort, and transport electronic waste, and ensure 
the proper recycling of collected materials; and 

WHEREAS, that certain Agreement is set to expire on June 30, 2021 and allows for up to 
two annual extensions upon written mutual agreement; and 

WHEREAS, SCWMA and Contractor wish to update the pricing structure for Payments 
to SCWMA and Costs to SCWMA in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, SCWMA and Contractor desire to extend the term of the 
Agreement to expire on June 30, 2022. 

AMENDMENT 

1. Amendment to Section 3, Term of Agreement. Section 3 of the Agreement is hereby
amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“3.  Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be from Effective Date (July 10, 
2018) to June 30, 2022, with up to one annual extension upon mutual agreement, which 
extensions may be authorized on behalf of the SCWMA by the SCWMA Executive 
Director, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 4 below.” 

2. Amendment to Exhibit A, Section 2 A, Payments to SCWMA. Exhibit A, Section 2 A is
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“A. Payments to SCWMA: 
i. $0.26 per pound for CRT devices
ii. $0.26 per pound for non-CRT CEW
iii. $0.12 per pound for PCs”

3. Amendment to Exhibit A, Section 2 B, Costs to SCWMA. Exhibit A, Section 2 B is
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

15



First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services 

2 

“B. Costs to SCWMA: 
i. $0.20 per pound for miscellaneous UWED
ii. $65.00 per box of four (4) rolls of shrink wrap
iii. $850.00 for 26’ truck exchange from Central Disposal Site (includes

transportation and labor for two staff)
iv. $850.00 for 26’ truck exchange from Sonoma Transfer Station (includes

transportation and labor for two staff)”

4. No Other Changes. Except as amended by this First Amendment, all other terms and
conditions in the Agreement shall remain unchanged and shall continue on in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment to Agreement 
for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services on the day and year first above 
written.  

AGENCY: CONTRACTOR: 

SONOMA COUNTY WASTE ONSITE ELECTRONICS RECYCLING, 
MANAGEMENT AGENCY  LLC 

By: By: 

Leslie Lukacs, Executive Director Its: 

Date:  Date:  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Ethan Walsh, Agency Counsel 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



RESOLUTION NO.: 2021-12 

DATED:  April 15, 2021 

 RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY, ALSO KNOWN AS 
ZERO WASTE SONOMA, (“AGENCY”) AUTHORIZING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH 

ONSITE ELECTRONICS RECYCLING, LLC (“CONTRACTOR”) FOR ELECTRONIC WASTE (E-WASTE) 
HANDLING, TRANSPORTATION AND RECYCLING SERVICES  

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified and experienced in 
Electronic Waste (“E-Waste”) handling, transportation, recycling and related services; 
and  

   WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of Agency, it is necessary 
and desirable to employ the services of Contractor for handling, transporting and 
recycling E-Waste collected at all transfer stations in Sonoma County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Zero Waste Sonoma Board hereby 
authorizes the Agency’s Executive Director to execute the Amendment to Agreement 
with Onsite Electronics Recycling for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling 
Services. 

MEMBERS: 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES: - - NOES: - - ABSENT: - -   ABSTAIN: - - 

SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST:    DATE:  April 15, 2021 

_________________________________________ 
Clerk of Zero Waste Sonoma of the State of California 
in and for the County of Sonoma 

32



Resolution No.: 2021-10 

Dated: April 15, 2021 

GOLD RESOLUTION OF ZERO WASTE SONOMA 
RECOGNIZING KARINA CHILCOTT FOR OVER TWENTY YEARS OF SERVICE 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 939 passed by the California State Legislation in 1989; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Sonoma and the municipalities of Sonoma County agreed to comply 
with the requirements of AB 939 by forming the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (also 
known as Zero Waste Sonoma) as a regional joint powers authority, and  

WHEREAS, Karina Chilcott faithfully served as Zero Waste Sonoma as a contractor from 
November 1995 to December 1999, and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Chilcott was hired as a Waste Management Specialist II on December 14, 1999 
and resigned April 25, 2016 at which point she transitioned to working at Sonoma County Agricultural 
Preservation and Open Space District, and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Chilcott returned to Zero Waste Sonoma on June 18, 2019 and retired 
effectively on April 6, 2021, and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Chilcott is recognized and upheld the mission of the ZWS, which is to educate 
and assist the residents of Sonoma County in their efforts to reduce, reuse and recycle materials in 
the waste stream, and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Chilcott earned the admiration and respect of her colleagues and peers for 
her dedication, enthusiasm, professionalism, and hard work, and   

WHEREAS, Ms. Chilcott fostered collaboration and goodwill amongst Zero Waste Sonoma 
staff and community members she engaged with; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Zero Waste Sonoma Board of Directors of Zero 
Waste Sonoma takes great pleasure in recognizing the significant contributions and achievements of 
Karina Chilcott., and herewith expresses its sincere gratitude for 20 years of service to Agency and, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED  that the Board of Directors wishes to express their deepest 
gratitude and appreciation to Karina for her contributions to Zero Waste Sonoma,  and the grace in 
which she did it, and wishes her the very best. 

MEMBERS: 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES: - - NOES: - - ABSENT: - -   ABSTAIN: - - 

SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST:    DATE:  April 15, 2021 

_________________________________________ 
Clerk of Zero Waste Sonoma 
Agency of the State of California in and for the  
County of Sonoma 

33



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Agenda Item #: 6 
Cost Center: All 
Staff Contact:  Collard 
Agenda Date:  4/15/2021 
Approved By:  LL 

ITEM:  Discussion and Possible Action on the 2021-22 ZWS Final Budget 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION / ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board approve the FY 21-22 Zero Waste Sonoma Final Budget.

II. BACKGROUND

The approval of the Work Plan outlining the contractor and staff costs for individual programs and
planned projects is the first step in the budget development process.  Direction was given to staff
regarding that document by the Board at the February 18, 2021.  The draft budget was approved
at the March 18, 2021 meeting.

The last step is the approval, with a required supermajority vote, of the Final Budget prepared and
presented by staff.  The Final Budget takes any comments, questions or directions resulting from
the presentation of the Draft Budget into consideration.

III. DISCUSSION

The FY 21-22 Draft Budget was presented to the board at the March 18, 2021 meeting.  At that
time staff prepared a balanced budget with the assumption that the agency surcharge could be
raised above the cap in the County’s MOA for material that was not self-hauled.   After further
discussion, staff recommended only approving the surcharge amount to the cap while more
detailed discussions and research could be completed for future plans to increase the fee.

At the March 30, 2021 special meeting, the board approved the fee increases to the agency
surcharge and the organics tipping fee.  Staff requested feedback from the board on how to
proceed with the final FY21/22 budget.  With the approval of the agency fee at $5.95/ton, the
estimated revenue is approximately $440,000 lower than projected, leaving the originally
proposed draft budget unbalanced.  While staff hopes to resolve the cap to the agency fee quickly,
this process is not guaranteed to be completed for the new fiscal year.  Staff is providing two
budget options for the Board’s consideration.  Option A reduces the contribution to debt servicing
for a future HHW facility in order to balance the budget.  Option B is the budget as approved at
the March 18, 2021 meeting.

Notable differences from the previous year’s budget include debt service contributions for a new
HHW facility, an additional Waste Management Specialist I position to help with HHW and SB1383
implementation, and the redistribution of administrative costs among the programs.

34



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Explanation of Notable Differences Between FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 

Administration Services 
ZWS will be adding a Waste Management Specialist I position.  The increase in Administration 
Services ($162,327) is based upon projections provided by County payroll.  The increase calculates 
any changes to benefits and any regularly scheduled step increases, as well as the new position. 

Other Contract Services 
The increase to this account is mostly attributed the increase in hauling and processing of organics 
and increased disposal of HHW. 

Other Professional Services 
This account is for the two new grants expected in the new fiscal year, the CRV Grant and the 
Food Recovery Grant. 

Contingency Fund Projects - Other Contract Services 
This account is for the HHW Feasibility Study, HHW program analysis assistance, and the HHW 
financial consultant. 

Special Department Expense 
This account is for the Waste Characterization study 

Conclusion 
This budget reflects the direction given to staff in the FY 2021-22 Work Plan and reflects the level 
of effort required to implement ZWS programs.  Between all funds, staff estimates a net cost of 
this budget (reduction of fund balances) in the amount of $417,928 for the Fiscal Year.  The fund 
balance reduction is for one-time contingency fund projects.  All core programs are projected to 
operate within budget with no draw down to reserves.  As all of the Reserve funds remain above 
Reserve Fund goals, staff believes it is a sensible budget which reflects the direction given to staff 
during the Work Plan discussion at the February 18, 2021 Meeting. 

Staff recommends the Board approval of the revised Final FY 21-22 Budget (Option A) with the 
assumption that a budget adjustment can be implemented mid-year if the agency cap is resolved. 

IV. ATTACHMENTS
Final FY 2021-22 Budget Option A
Final FY 2021-22 Budget Option B
History and Fund Balances

35



Zero Waste Sonoma
FY 21-22 Final Budget Summary - Option A

Organics H H W Ed & Outreach Organics Res. Contin. Res. Unfund Liab Total All
78111 78104 78110 78103 78109 78112 Divisions

REVENUES
42358 State Other Funding 200,000      78,349            167,172          - -               445,521         
42601 County of Sonoma 7,148,750   1,938,054      562,661          - -               9,649,465     
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash -               13,357            - 22,307           18,485         6,586           60,735           
46029 Donations/Contributions -               167,394          45,985             - -               213,380         
47101 Transfers In - within a Fund -               - 65,000             - 65,000         130,000         

TOTAL REVENUES 7,348,750   2,197,155      840,818          22,307           83,485         6,586           10,499,101   

EXPENDITURES
51041 Insurance - Liability 7,616           2,016              1,568               - -               11,200           
51071 Maintenance 8,000              8,000             
51201 Administration Services 378,860      289,197          532,651          55,999           87,849         1,344,556     
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc -               15,500            10,000             - -               25,500           
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 10,200         2,700              2,100               1,000             1,000           1,000           18,000           
51207 Client  Accounting Services 15,643         4,141              3,221               - -               23,005           
51212 Legal Services 5,000           4,000              15,000             35,000           20,000         79,000           
51213 Engineer Services -               - - - -               - 
51214 Temp Services - 6,000               6,000             
51225 Training Services -               800                  - - -               800                 
51229 Hazardous Waste Disposal 28,000            28,000           
51241 Outside Printing 3,000               3,000             
51249 Other Professional Services 205,000      52,022            140,653          - -               397,674         
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 2,040           540                  420 - -               3,000             
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,203           14,583            2,696               - -               19,482           
51507 Special Departmental Expense 136,784          136,784         
51803 Other Contract Services 6,655,528   1,280,000      30,000             - 115,000      8,080,528     
51805 Sponsorships 2,500               2,500             
51901 Telecommunication Data Line 489              489                  6,359               - -               7,337             
51902 Telecommunication Usage 26                 156                  1,185               - -               1,367             
51904 ISD - Baseline Services 16,691         10,627            11,326             - -               38,644           
51906 ISD - Supplemental Projects -               - - - -               - 
51909 Telecommunication Wireless -               2,040              6,036               - -               8,076             
51911 Mail Services 250              100                  500 - -               850                 
51915 ISD - Reprographics Services -               - - - -               - 
51916 County Services 16,781         8,679              7,308               379                 217              33,364           
51919 EFS Charges -               - - - -               - 
51922 County Car Expense 1,020           270                  210 - -               1,500             
51923 Unclaimable County Car Exp -               - 50 50 
52091 Memberships/Certifications 12,555         5,683              21,566             - -               39,804           
52111 Office Supplies 2,000           2,500              8,220               1,000             1,000           14,720           
52114 Freight/Postage 11,000         4,000               15,000           
52115 Subscriptions 629              167                  130 925                 
52118 Print Supplies (Zero Waste Gd) 4,400               4,400             
52162 Special Departmental Expense 979              259                  202 - 150,000      151,440         
52163 Professional Development 1,100           8,300              19,520             - -               28,920           
52191 Utilities Expense -               6,132              - 6,132             

        SUBTOTAL 7,345,612 1,883,684 840,818 93,378 375,066      10,538,559 
OTHER CHARGES

57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund -               313,470          - - 65,000         378,470         
57015 Transfers Out - All Others -               - - - -               - 

        SUBTOTAL - 313,470         - - 65,000        378,470 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,345,612   2,197,154      840,818          93,378           440,066      -               10,917,029   
NET COST (3,138)          (0) 0 71,072           356,581      (6,586)          417,928         

36



Zero Waste Sonoma
FY 21-22 Final Budget Summary - Option B

Organics H H W Ed & Outreach Organics Res. Contin. Res. Unfund Liab Total All
78111 78104 78110 78103 78109 78112 Divisions

REVENUES
42358 State Other Funding 200,000      78,349            167,172          - -               445,521         
42601 County of Sonoma 7,148,750   2,278,391      661,468          - -               10,088,609   
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash -               13,357            - 22,307           18,485         6,586           60,735           
46029 Donations/Contributions -               205,994          57,192             - -               263,186         
47101 Transfers In - within a Fund -               52,593            - - 44,756         97,349           

TOTAL REVENUES 7,348,750   2,628,685      885,832          22,307           63,241         6,586           10,955,401   

EXPENDITURES
51041 Insurance - Liability 7,616           2,016              1,568               - -               11,200           
51071 Maintenance 8,000              8,000             
51201 Administration Services 378,860      289,197          532,651          55,999           87,849         1,344,556     
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc -               15,500            10,000             - -               25,500           
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 10,200         2,700              2,100               1,000             1,000           1,000           18,000           
51207 Client  Accounting Services 15,643         4,141              3,221               - -               23,005           
51212 Legal Services 5,000           4,000              15,000             35,000           20,000         79,000           
51213 Engineer Services -               - - - -               - 
51214 Temp Services - 6,000               6,000             
51225 Training Services -               800                  - - -               800                 
51229 Hazardous Waste Disposal 28,000            28,000           
51241 Outside Printing 3,000               3,000             
51249 Other Professional Services 205,000      52,022            140,653          - -               397,674         
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 2,040           540                  420 - -               3,000             
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,203           14,583            2,954               - -               19,740           
51507 Special Departmental Expense 136,784          136,784         
51803 Other Contract Services 6,655,528   1,280,000      30,000             - 115,000      8,080,528     
51805 Sponsorships 2,500               2,500             
51901 Telecommunication Data Line 489              489                  6,359               - -               7,337             
51902 Telecommunication Usage 26                 156                  1,185               - -               1,367             
51904 ISD - Baseline Services 16,691         10,627            11,326             - -               38,644           
51906 ISD - Supplemental Projects -               - - - -               - 
51909 Telecommunication Wireless -               2,040              6,036               - -               8,076             
51911 Mail Services 250              100                  500 - -               850                 
51915 ISD - Reprographics Services -               - - - -               - 
51916 County Services 16,781         8,679              7,308               379                 217              33,364           
51919 EFS Charges -               - - - -               - 
51922 County Car Expense 1,020           270                  210 - -               1,500             
51923 Unclaimable County Car Exp -               - 50 50 
52091 Memberships/Certifications 12,555         5,683              21,566             - -               39,804           
52111 Office Supplies 2,000           2,500              8,220               1,000             1,000           14,720           
52114 Freight/Postage 11,000         4,000               15,000           
52115 Subscriptions 629              167                  130 925                 
52118 Print Supplies (Zero Waste Gd) 4,400               4,400             
52162 Special Departmental Expense 979              259                  202 - 150,000      151,440         
52163 Professional Development 1,100           8,300              19,520             - -               28,920           
52191 Utilities Expense -               6,132              - 6,132             

        SUBTOTAL 7,345,612 1,883,684 841,076 93,378 375,066      10,538,817 
OTHER CHARGES

57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund -               745,000          44,756             - 52,593         842,349         
57015 Transfers Out - All Others -               - - - -               - 

        SUBTOTAL - 745,000         44,756            - 52,593        842,349 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,345,612   2,628,684      885,832          93,378           427,659      -               11,381,166   
NET COST (3,138)          (0) 0 71,072           364,418      (6,586)          425,765         

37



Resolution No.: 2021-11 

Dated: April 15, 2021 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY, ALSO KNOW 
AS ZERO WASTE SONOMA (“ZWS”), ADOPTING AN ANNUAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22. 

WHEREAS, ZWS Board of Directors gave direction to ZWS’s Executive Director to 
prepare and present an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, an annual budget has been prepared and presented to ZWS Board of 
Directors; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the ZWS’s Annual Budget for the period 
July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022, attached hereto as FY 21-22 ZWS Final Budget is hereby adopted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of this 
resolution to the Sonoma County Auditor-Controller. 

MEMBERS: 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES: - - NOES: - - ABSENT: - -   ABSTAIN: - - 

SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST:    DATE:  April 15, 2021 

_________________________________________ 
Clerk of Zero Waste Sonoma of the State of California 
in and for the County of Sonoma 

38



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 

Summary 
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change
REVENUES

42358 State Other Funding 309,299 217,306 303,686 309,081 311,646 287,646 445,521 133,875 30%
42601 County of Sonoma 6,003,162 6,830,677 7,549,381 8,717,517 7,484,783 8,717,517 9,649,465 2,164,682 22%
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 68,805 94,167 152,137 151,422 79,542 80,874 60,735 (18,807) -31%
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses (37,744) (15,156) 88,779 (21,917) 0 (16,308) 0 0 0%
46029 Donations/Contributions 355,547 329,620 219,305 204,692 179,120 204,692 213,379 34,259 16%
46050 Cancelled/Stale Dated Warrants (8,934) 5,757 461 0 0 0 0 0%
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue 9,016 (535) 28,994 9,911 0 5,198 0 0 0%
46210 Refunds 0 0 698 47,616 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 6,708,085 7,447,145 8,348,737 9,418,783 8,055,091 9,279,619 10,369,100 2,314,009 22%
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 96,938 55,928 0 130,000 0 0 130,000 130,000 0%
48004 Residual Equity Transfers 0 0 3,660,876 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 96,938 55,928 3,660,876 130,000 0 0 130,000 130,000 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 6,805,023 7,503,073 12,009,612 9,548,783 8,055,091 9,279,619 10,499,100 2,444,009 23%

PENDITURES
51041 Insurance - Liability 10,623 10,152 10,440 11,179 11,200 11,632 11,200 0 0%
51071 Maintenance - Bldg 0 0 14,281 1,817 5,000 5,000 8,000 3,000 38%
51201 Administration Services 503,265 900,607 791,725 1,020,749 1,182,229 1,182,229 1,344,556 162,327 12%
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 11,461 11,262 19,136 13,370 10,000 13,500 25,500 15,500 61%
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 17,350 16,500 22,939 18,000 22,000 22,000 17,000 (5,000) -29%
51207 Client  Accounting Services 21,881 22,283 12,979 26,497 18,720 18,720 23,005 4,285 19%
51212 Outside Counsel-Legal Advice 53,838 23,155 43,684 55,512 61,000 61,000 79,000 18,000 23%
51214 Agency Extra/Temp Help 0 0 0 4,247 0 0 6,000 6,000 100%
51225 Training Services 195 1,409 0 0 800 783 800 0 0%
52119 Hazardous Waste Disposal 0 0 0 18,415 28,000 28,000 28,000 0 0%
51241 Outside Printing 0 3,097 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 0%
51249 Other Professional Services 245,993 133,037 200,091 294,975 294,438 269,438 397,674 103,237 26%
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 2,177 0 465 2,886 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 0%
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 10,539 13,376 9,824 9,027 19,490 19,490 19,482 (8) 0%
51507 Special Departmental Expense 0 0 0 53,249 64,000 64,000 136,784 72,784 53%
51801 Other Services 19,920 119,709 0 990 0 0 0 0 0%
51803 Other Contract Services 5,550,088 6,075,929 6,740,708 7,244,658 6,427,402 7,282,670 8,080,528 1,653,127 20%
51805 County Sponsorships 0 0 0 2,500 2,500 100%
51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 4,041 3,913 4,158 6,032 7,337 8,804 7,337 0 0%
51902 Telecommunication Usage 948 1,065 1,085 1,222 1,367 1,367 1,367 0 0%
51903 Telecommunication Installation 526 267 (1) 0 0 0 0 0%
51904 ISD - Baseline Services 21,707 26,050 32,580 32,843 32,985 39,608 38,644 5,659 15%
51905 ISD - Improvement Projects 2,841 4,118 (1) 0 258 0 0 0%
51906 ISD - Supplemental Projects 7,210 345 795 300 0 150 0 0
51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc 1,717 3,563 5,372 7,989 3,269 7,269 8,076 4,807 60%
51911 Mail Services 1,624 778 392 292 850 600 850 0 0%
51912 Records Services 22 26 22 (1) 0 0 0 0 0%
51916 County Services 11,212 9,919 37,422 30,808 24,121 24,121 33,364 9,243 28%
51922 County Car Expense 577 830 1,979 1,141 1,500 1,501 1,500 0 0%
51923 Unclaimable County Car Expense 40 27 16 53 50 50 50 0 0%
52091 Memberships/Certifications 10,350 13,450 14,208 36,488 9,180 9,800 39,804 30,624 77%
52111 Office Supplies 24,529 25,358 48,460 15,809 16,720 15,174 14,720 (2,000) -14%
52114 Freight/Postage 0 0 0 286 9,000 15,134 15,000 6,000 40%
52115 Subscriptions (web) 0 0 0 378 925 925 925 0 0%
52118 Printing and Binding Supplies 0 0 0 9,560 3,400 3,400 4,400 1,000 23%
52162 Special Departmental Expense 0 217 8,159 151,440 6,440 151,440 0 0%
52163 Professional Development 100 1,695 17,337 16,145 320 320 28,920 28,600 99%
52191 Utilities 0 0 3,638 3,077 4,500 4,500 6,132 1,632 27%

SUBTOTAL 6,570,566 7,417,803 8,038,339 8,946,169 8,417,243 9,123,883 10,538,559 2,121,316 20%
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund 96,938 55,928 0 378,470 0 0 378,470 378,470 0%
57015 Transfers Out - All Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 96,938 55,928 0 378,470 0 0 378,470 378,470 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,667,504 7,473,731 8,038,339 9,324,639 8,417,243 9,123,883 10,917,029 2,499,786 23%

NET COST (137,520) (29,342) (3,971,274) (224,144) 164,109 164,109 417,929

ROUNDING ERROR 2 2
FUND BALANCE
Beginning Fund Balance 7,566,030 7,703,550 7,732,592 8,100,208 7,936,099
Ending Fund Balance 7,703,550 7,732,592 8,100,208 7,936,099 7,518,17039



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 
Organics 78111

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change

REVENUES
42601 County of Sonoma 4,936,170 5,445,517 6,451,103 5,410,935 6,451,103 7,148,750 1,737,815 24%
42358 State Other Funding 0 0 0 25,000 0 200,000 175,000 88%
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 1,861 884 0 13,357 0 0 (13,357)
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses (3,978) 2,726 (3,999) 0 0 0 0 0%
46029 Donations/Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
46210 Refunds 0 0 47,616 0 0 0 0 0%
46200 PY Revenue - Miscellaneous 433 17,103 1,000 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 4,934,485 5,466,230 6,495,721 5,449,292 6,451,103 7,348,750 1,899,458 26%
47101 OT-Within Enterprise 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
48004 Residual Equity Transfers 0 1,379,625 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 0 1,379,625 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 4,934,485 6,845,855 6,495,721 5,449,292 6,451,103 7,348,750 1,899,458 26%

EXPENDITURES
51041 Insurance - Liability 1,320 1,357 1,453 1,288 1,338 7,616 6,328 83%
51201 Administration Services 155,630 97,217 158,580 150,536 150,536 378,860 228,325 60%
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 0 29 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 4,875 7,939 2,340 6,500 6,500 10,200 3,700 36%
51207 Client  Accounting Services 5,348 0 3,445 2,153 2,153 15,643 13,491 86%
51212 Outside Counsel-Legal Advice 111 6,085 3,176 5,000 5,000 5,000 0 0%
51249 Other Professional Services 0 0 8,264 25,000 0 205,000 180,000 88%
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 0 0 431 345 345 2,040 1,695 83%
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 0 0 0 373 373 2,203 1,831 83%
51803 Other Contract Services 4,654,695 5,406,807 6,133,570 5,302,402 6,133,570 6,655,528 1,353,127 20%
51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 1,467 6,451 1,223 489 1,956 489 0 0%
51902 Telecommunication Usage 14 0 25 26 26 26 0 0%
51903 Telecommunication Installation 0 267 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51904 ISD - Baseline Services 10,954 11,535 8,452 6,377 13,000 16,691 10,314 62%
51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc 1,810 655 (235) 0 0 0 0 0%
51911 Mail Services 1 2 0 250 0 250 0 0%
51916 County Services 2,888 6,110 5,494 2,774 2,774 16,781 14,007 83%
51922 County Car Expense 0 0 148 173 173 1,020 848 83%
52091 Memberships/Certifications 0 0 8,405 0 200 12,555 12,555 100%
52111 Office Supplies 0 5,417 2,251 2,000 454 2,000 0 0%
52114 Freight/Postage 0 0 0 4,000 10,134 11,000 7,000 64%
52115 Subscriptions (Web) 0 0 0 106 106 629 523 83%
52162 Special Departmental Expense 0 0 0 166 166 979 814 83%
52163 Professional Development 0 0 2,075 0 0 1,100 1,100 100%
52191 Utilites 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 4,839,114 5,549,873 6,339,097 5,509,956 6,328,803 7,345,612 1,835,656 25%
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund 1,882 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
57015 Transfers Out - All Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 1,882 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,840,996 5,549,873 6,339,097 5,509,956 6,328,803 7,345,612 1,835,656 25%

NET COST (93,490) (1,295,982) (156,624) 60,663 (122,300) (3,138)

FUND BALANCE FB Goal Difference
Beginning Fund Balance 1,279,773 1,373,263 1,319,327 1,452,606 1,452,606 1,574,906 1,101,842 (476,202)  
Ending Fund Balance 1,373,263 1,319,327 1,452,606 1,391,942 1,574,906 1,578,044

40



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 
Household Hazardous Waste     78104

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change

REVENUES
42358 State Other Funding 137,089 153,791 161,668 146,750 146,750 78,349 (68,401) -87%
42601 County of Sonoma 1,401,935 1,598,937 1,699,810 1,607,233 1,699,810 1,938,054 330,821 17%
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 14,613 29,576 33,496 13,357 33,496 13,357 0 0%
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses (2,057) 22,397 (4,086) 0 (4,086) 0 0 0%
46029 Donations/Contributions 284,065 175,509 155,914 142,868 155,914 167,394 24,526 15%
46050 Cancelled/Stale Dated Warrants (8,934) 5,757 0 0 0 0 0 0%
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue (413) 0 7,994 0 5,198 0 0 0%
46210 Refunds 0 698 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 1,826,298 1,986,664 2,054,796 1,910,208 2,037,083 2,197,154 286,947 13%
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,826,298 1,986,664 2,054,796 1,910,208 2,037,083 2,197,154 286,947 13%

EXPENDITURES
51041 Insurance - Liability 6,294 6,473 6,931 7,392 7,677 2,016 (5,376) -267%
51071 Maintenance - Bldg 0 14,281 1,817 5,000 5,000 8,000 3,000 38%
51201 Administration Services 324,413 275,246 388,390 436,118 436,118 289,197 (146,922) -51%
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 10,630 11,626 12,382 10,000 13,000 15,500 5,500 35%
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 5,625 7,000 11,160 7,500 7,500 2,700 (4,800) -178%
51207 Client  Accounting Services 10,250 9,250 16,428 12,355 12,355 4,141 (8,214) -198%
51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 1,794 2,098 806 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 0%
51214 Agency Extra/Temp Help 0 0 4,247 0 0 0 0 0%
51225 Training Services 325 0 0 800 533 800 0 0%
51229 Hazardous Waste Disposal 0 0 18,415 28,000 28,000 28,000 0 0%
51249 Other Professional Services 118,506 130,569 145,067 146,750 146,750 52,022 (94,728) -182%
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 0 0 2,057 1,980 1,980 540 (1,440) -267%
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 6,660 5,240 3,825 16,138 16,138 14,583 (1,555) -11%
51507 Special Departmental Expense 0 0 53,249 64,000 64,000 136,784 72,784 53%
51801 Other Services 14,494 0 990 0 0 0 0 0%
51803 Other Contract Services 1,190,063 1,178,335 1,065,614 1,125,000 1,145,000 1,280,000 155,000 12%
51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 0 0 489 489 489 489 0 0%
51902 Telecommunication Usage 74 154 168 156 156 156 0 0%
51904 ISD - Baseline Services 4,125 4,699 5,002 13,945 13,945 10,627 (3,318) -31%
51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc 0 331 1,477 1,224 1,224 2,040 816 40%
51911 Mail Services 38 6 2 100 100 100 0 0%
51916 County Services 2,436 19,833 16,060 15,920 15,920 8,679 (7,241) -83%
51922 County Car Expense 0 0 707 990 990 270 (720) -267%
52091 Memberships/Certifications 10,200 10,450 10,375 4,560 4,650 5,683 1,123 20%
52111 Office Supplies 3,307 2,313 363 2,500 2,500 2,500 0 0%
52115 Subscriptions (Web) 0 0 0 611 611 167 (444) -267%
52162 Special Departmental Expense 0 0 4,679 950 950 259 (691) -267%
52163 Professional Development 120 73 2,244 0 0 8,300 8,300 100%
52191 Utilities 0 3,638 3,077 4,500 4,500 6,132 1,632 27%

SUBTOTAL 1,709,354 1,681,614 1,776,021 1,910,979 1,934,087 1,883,684 (27,294) -1%
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund 27,265 0 0 0 0 313,470 313,470 100%
57015 Transfers Out - All Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 27,265 0 0 0 0 313,470 313,470 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,736,619 1,681,614 1,776,021 1,910,979 1,934,087 2,197,154 286,176 13%

NET COST (89,679) (305,050) (278,775) 771 (102,996) 0

FUND BALANCE FB Goal Difference
Beginning Fund Balance 944,489 1,033,868 1,339,237 1,652,088 1,652,088 1,755,084 470,921 (1,284,163)  
Ending Fund Balance 1,033,868 1,339,237 1,652,088 1,651,317 1,755,084 1,755,084

41



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 
Education and Outreach 78110

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change

REVENUES
42358 State Other Funding 80,218 149,895 147,413 139,896 140,896 167,172 27,276 16%
42601 County of Sonoma 492,572 504,927 566,603 466,616 566,603 562,661 96,045 17%
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 8,012 1,127 0 5,449 0 0 (5,449)
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses (1,473) 5,682 (1,640) 0 (1,640) 0 0 0%
46029 Donations/Contributions 45,556 43,796 48,778 36,252 48,778 45,985 9,733 21%
46050 Cancelled/Stale Dated Warrants 0 0 461 0 0 0 0 0%
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue (702) 1,522 667 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 624,182 706,951 762,282 648,213 754,637 775,818 127,605 16%
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 65,000 0%
48004 Residual Equity Transfers 0 451,300 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 0 451,300 0 0 0 65,000 65,000 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 624,182 1,158,252 762,282 648,213 754,637 840,818 192,605 23%

EXPENDITURES
51041 Insurance - Liability 2,538 2,610 2,795 2,520 2,617 1,568 (952) -61%
51201 Administration Services 332,378 366,027 411,170 441,125 441,125 532,651 91,526 17%
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 632 128 988 0 500 10,000 10,000 100%
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 3,000 4,000 4,500 4,000 4,000 2,100 (1,900) -90%
51207 Client  Accounting Services 6,685 3,730 6,624 4,212 4,212 3,221 (991) -31%
51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 20,300 21,114 17,907 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 0%
51214 Agency Extra/Temp Help 0 0 0 0 0 6,000 6,000 100%
51225 Training Services 1,084 0 0 0 250 0 0 0%
51241 Outside Printing 0 0 3,097 3,000 3,000 3,000 0 0%
51249 Other Professional Services 14,530 69,522 134,474 122,688 122,688 140,653 17,965 13%
51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 0 465 829 675 675 420 (255) -61%
51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 6,716 4,584 5,202 2,979 2,979 2,696 (283) -11%
51801 Other Services 136 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51803 Other Contract Services 102,217 63,924 45,474 0 1,100 30,000 30,000 100%
51805 County Sponsorships 0 0 0 0 0 2,500 2,500 100%
51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 2,446 (2,294) 4,321 6,359 6,359 6,359 0 0%
51902 Telecommunication Usage 977 931 1,029 1,185 1,185 1,185 0 0%
51903 Telecommunication Installation 526 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51904 ISD - Baseline Services 10,970 16,345 19,389 12,663 12,663 11,326 (1,337) -12%
51905 ISD - Improvement Projects 2,841 4,118 1,843 0 258 0 0 0%
51906 ISD - Supplemental Projects 345 795 300 0 150 0 0 0%
51907 ISD - Device Modernization 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc 1,753 4,387 6,747 2,046 6,045 6,036 3,990 66%
51911 Mail Services 739 382 290 500 500 500 0 0%
51912 Records Services 26 22 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51916 County Services 3,129 11,124 8,658 5,427 5,427 7,308 1,881 26%
51922 County Car Expense 830 1,979 285 338 338 210 (128) -61%
51923 Unclaimable County Car Expense 27 16 53 50 50 50 0 0%
52091 Memberships/Certifications 3,250 3,758 17,708 4,620 4,950 21,566 16,946 79%
52111 Office Supplies 22,041 27,328 12,579 10,220 10,220 8,220 (2,000) -24%
52114 Freight/Postage 0 0 286 5,000 5,000 4,000 (1,000) -25%
52115 Subscriptions (web) 0 0 378 208 208 130 (79) -61%
52118 Printing and Binding Supplies 0 0 9,560 3,400 3,400 4,400 1,000 23%
52162 Special Departmental Expense 0 217 0 324 324 202 (122) -61%
52163 Professional Development 1,575 17,264 11,164 320 320 19,520 19,200 98%
52191 Utilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 541,690 622,477 727,650 648,858 655,543 840,818 191,960 23%
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund 26,781 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 26,781 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 568,471 622,477 727,650 648,858 655,543 840,818 191,960 23%

NET COST (55,711) (535,774) (34,632) 645 (99,095) 0

FUND BALANCE FB Goal Difference
Beginning Fund Balance 391,973 447,684 544,751 577,587 577,587 676,682 83,508 (593,174)   
Ending Fund Balance 447,684 544,751 577,587 576,942 676,682 676,682

42



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 
Organics Reserve   78103

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change

REVENUES
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 41,374 82,662 66,334 22,307 22,307 22,307 0 0%
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses (4,300) 35,584 (5,736) 0 (5,736) 0 0 0%
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 37,172 118,246 60,599 22,307 16,571 22,307 0 0%
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 1,882 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
48004 Residual Equity Transfers 0 (650,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 1,882 (650,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 39,054 (531,754) 60,599 22,307 16,571 22,307 0 0%

EXPENDITURES
51201 Administration Services 88,186 19,557 49,033 60,908 60,908 55,999 (4,908) -9%
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,875 2,500 0 2,500 2,500 1,000 (1,500) -150%
51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 950 5,267 29,286 35,000 35,000 35,000 0 0%
51801 Other Services 105,079 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51803 Other Contract Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51911 Mail Services 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51916 County Services 1,378 243 379 0 0 379 379 100%
52111 Office Supplies 10 0 55 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0%
52162 Special Departmental Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
52163 Professional Development 0 0 662 0 0 0 0 0%
53610 Other Charges 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 197,478 27,569 79,414 99,408 99,408 93,378 (6,029) -6%
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 197,478 27,569 79,414 99,408 99,408 93,378 (6,029) -6%

NET COST 158,424 559,322 18,816 77,101 82,836 71,072

FUND BALANCE FB Goal Difference
Beginning Fund Balance 3,025,177 2,866,753 2,307,431 2,289,031 2,289,031 2,211,931 1,836,403 (304,456)   
Ending Fund Balance 2,866,753 2,307,431 2,289,031 2,270,215 2,211,931 2,140,859

43



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 
Contingency Reserve 78109

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change

REVENUES
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 28,307 36,327 38,481 18,485 18,485 18,485 0 0%
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses (3,347) 16,939 (4,847) 0 (4,847) 0 0 0%
46029 Donations/Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue 49 10,368 250 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 25,008 63,634 33,884 18,485 13,638 18,485 0 0%
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 54,046 0 0 0 0 65,000 65,000 0%
48004 Residual Equity Transfers 0 1,829,950 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 54,046 1,829,950 0 0 0 65,000 65,000 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 79,054 1,893,584 33,884 18,485 13,638 83,485 65,000 78%

EXPENDITURES
51201 Administration Services 0 33,678 13,576 93,543 93,543 87,849 (5,694) -6%
51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 0 7,353 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,125 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 1,000 (500) -50%
51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 0 9,120 4,337 2,000 2,000 20,000 18,000 90%
51249 Other Professional Services 0 0 7,170 0 0 0 0 0%
51801 Other Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
51803 Other Contract Services 128,954 91,641 0 0 3,000 115,000 115,000 100%
51916 County Services 88 112 217 0 0 217 217 100%
52111 Office Supplies 0 13,401 561 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0%
52162 Special Departmental Expense 0 0 3,480 150,000 5,000 150,000 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 130,167 156,805 29,342 248,043 106,043 375,066 127,024 34%
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 65,000 100%
57015 Transfers Out - All Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 65,000 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 130,167 156,805 29,342 248,043 106,043 440,066 192,024 44%

NET COST 51,113 (1,736,779) (4,542) 229,558 92,404 356,581

FUND BALANCE FB Goal Difference
Beginning Fund Balance 2,062,138 2,011,025 1,932,451 1,936,993 1,936,993 1,707,435 877,269 (473,584)  
Ending Fund Balance 2,011,025 1,932,451 1,936,993 1,941,535 1,707,435 1,350,853

44



FY 21-22 FINAL BUDGET
ZERO WASTE SONOMA

REVENUE, EXPENDITURE, AND FUND BALANCE HISTORY 
Unfunded Pension Liablility Reserve 78112

Actual Actual Budgeted Estimated Reqested %
FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Difference Change

REVENUES
44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 1,560 13,111 6,586 6,586 6,586 0 0%
44050 Unrealized Gains and Losses 5,451 (1,610) 0 0 0 0 0%
46029 Donations/Contributions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
46200 Revenue Appl PY Misc Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

SUBTOTAL 7,011 11,501 6,586 6,586 6,586 0 0%
47101 Transfers In - Within a Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
48004 Residual Equity Transfers 650,000 0 0 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL 650,000 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL REVENUES 657,011 11,501 6,586 6,586 6,586 0 0%

EXPENDITURES
51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 0 0 0 0 1,000 (1,000) -100%

SUBTOTAL
57011 Transfers Out - Within a Fund

SUBTOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

NET COST (657,011) (11,501) (6,586) (6,586) (6,586) 0

FUND BALANCE FB Goal Difference
Beginning Fund Balance 0 657,011 668,512 668,512 675,098 650,000 (31,684)      
Ending Fund Balance 657,011 668,512 675,098 675,098 681,684

45


	Agenda for April 15, 2021 Meeting
	Agenda Notes for April 15, 2021 Meeting
	Item 4.1: Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Meeting
	Item 4.2: Minutes of the March 30, 2021 Special Meeting
	Item 4.3: March, April, and May 2021 Outreach Calendar
	Item 4.4: Approval of First Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handing, Transportation, and Recycling Services
	Item 5: Gold Resolution Recognizing Karina Chilcott for over Twenty Years of Service
	Item 6: Discussion and Possible Action on the 2021-22 ZWS Final Budget



